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Y

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
: ' DALLAS DIVISION

‘?\\%\\ ' IN'THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT ?‘OUR-T }

UNITEDSTATESOF AMERICA NO.

ROLAN IVAN HERNANDEZ—FUENTES 1) ?0]1‘3E18FILE(I})IUINDI§{ ?ng !

ak.a. Ivan Fuentes
ak.a. Tasmania
a:k.a. Ronal Ivan Fuentes Hernandez
JERSON GUTIERREZ-RAMOS (2)
“ak.a. Gerson Gutierrez ;
aka. Sparky :

KEVIN CRUZ (4)
ak.a. Stréet Danger
MANUEL AMAYA-ALVAREZ (5)
ak.a. Manuel Amaya
ak.4. Chocolate _
JOSE ARMANDO SARAVTA ROMERO (6)
ak:a. Jose Saravxa
a.k:a. Mandy
- aka Pinky
JONATHAN ALEXANDER BAIRES U]
ak.a. Splinter
CRISTIAN WILFREDO CABRERA ‘CRUZ

(8)

a.k.a, Crigtin Benjamin V1g11
a.ka, Mama

The Grand Jury charges:
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Count One ‘
Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt. Orgamzatlons (RICO) Consplracy
(Violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1962(d)) ' :
At all times relevant to thLS Thdictment;
The Enterprise.
1.. La Mara Salvazﬁéha’ also kriown as MS-13 (“MS?-13f’j, "Wé's’ a gang |

- members operating in the State_ of Texas, mcludmgm‘ the Dallas metropohtan areaj and
'thrbughOut-_.the-Uﬁited States. |

2. Thename “Mara Salvatrucha” was a combination of several s.laﬁg terms.
The word “Mara” was the term u.s.ed in El Salvador for “gang.” The phrase
“Salvatrucha® was a combination of the wdrds “Salva,” which was an abbreviation .for",

"‘Salvadoran * and “trucha,” which was a slang term for “fear us,” “look out,” or “heads

up.”

3. Inthe United St:a”te's', MS-13 has been functioning since at Iéast the 19807,
MS-13 orxgmated iri Los Angeles Cahforma wheré MS-13 members ‘banded together for
protection agamst the larger Mexwan groups MS—13 cvolved mto a gang that engaged in
turf WafSlfOi‘,;thS cottrol of drug distribution locations. MS-13 qmckly spread to states
across the country, ingiuding Texas. |

4  MS-13 was 4 national and international cxixtﬁna‘i organization énd was onie *
of the largest street. gangs in the United States. Gang membersactively recruited.
members, including Juvemles from communities with a large number of SaIvadoran

immigrants.
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5. | Rolan Ivan Hernandez-Fuentes, a.k.a. }van.I{uen;'te‘s,;a.k;é'.,T-asmania-,n |
a';’l"(‘:a.-‘Ronai Ivan Fueﬁﬁs}ﬂernandez‘;{j erson Gutierrez-Ramos, ak.a. Gerson
——— 1
- and Kevin Cruz, a.k.a. Street Danger; the defendants, and others known and o
unknown to the Grand Jury, were me.mberssandas,so,ciates of MS-13.

6. ’:Members of MS-13 from time to time signified their mﬁfx{berhip by
wearing taitoos reading “MARA SALVATRUCHA,” “MS;” “MS:13,” or sl ttoos,
'often wntten in gothic lettering. Meiibets also signified their. membérship through

‘tatteos of devil homs in various places on their bodies. The gang colots of MS- 13 were

thenumber 43 ‘."’? MS-13 membets réferred to one another by their gang nam,e,.s,s or

 monikers, and often did not know fellow gang members except by their ganig names,

7. Menibers of MS-13 were expected to protect the namereputanonand .
status of the gang from rival sang mermbers and other persons, MS-13 iﬁernberfs:;requiréa
that all mdlvxduals show: respect .and deference to the gang.and its, membershlp To
‘protect the gang and to.enhance its reputation, MS-13 members were expected foruse any
- means necessary to force respect from those who 'showcd.disrssp's:ct,1,1n<_f:;,1ud1_ng.-acts;@f
jntimidation and violence, MS- 13’s creed was based on one of its mottos, “Mata, roba;
viola, controlla,” which tgaﬂslatcd in sum and substance to, “Kill, Ste,al, rape, control”

8. Members and assoviates of MS-13 fr‘eqm%sii;tl,ycngégféd, mcnmmalactwity,

includig; bt not linited to, murder, assault, drug trafficking, robbery; and extortion, as

well as attemptsand conspitacies to commit such offenses: MS-13 membsts weie:
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required to commit acté of violence to maintain memBé'rship and discipline within the
gang, as well as against rival gang members. Participation in ctimiﬁa_l activity by a
member, particularly in violent acts directed at rival gangs or as directed by gang;
 leadership, increased the respect accorded to that member, resulted in:that member
mamtammg or ingteasing his posmon in the gang, and opened the door to a promotlon to
a leadéijshl_p position. One-of the pnnmpal, rules of MS-13. was that its menibérs must
attack and kill tivals whenever possible. Rivals were often referred to a's;f‘fch’avaras.”

- among others.

9.  Prospective membets Wﬁo SOught to join MS:13 were ré'quired to complete
an initiation process. ;Indiw)iduals who associated and comimitted crimes with thé géng
wete called “paros.” Individuals who were attemptmg to join the gang were called
“chequeos i Chequeos underwent a probatlonary period during whlch they were requlred
to commit crimes: on behalf of MS 13 to achieve trust and prove. thelr loyalty to: the gang,
To join MS-13 and become fu_ll members or “homeboys;” prospec_tfive members were
required to: complete an initiation process, often referred to as being “jumped | in” or “beat

1" to the:-gang. During that mitiation, othér members.of MS 13-would beat the new ,
member, usually until a gang 'memb,erﬁmsh@gi;countmg_aloud-to the:-munbertlurte;:ns,
represénting the “13” in:MS-13. | |

10 MS-13 was an international eriminal organifzaﬁoﬁ,_ andwaSorgamzed in
region. Chques operated qndfejr” the umbr'ella-.rules of MS~1‘3‘. MS-13 cliques often
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worked together cooperatively to-engage in criminal activity and to assist one another in
the Irving Loco Salvatruchas clique (“ILS”).
11, Rolan Ivan Hernandez-Fuentes, a.k.a, Ivan Fuentes, aka: Tasmania;

_akaa, Ronal Ivan Fuentes Hernandez; Jerson Gutierrez-Ramos,a.K.a. Gerson

 Gutierrez, ak.a. Sparky; I
- Il 2nd Kevin Cruz, a.k.a. Street Danger; the defendants, were members and
 agsociates of the ILS clique of MS<13,

12.  MS-13 members met on a regular basis to, among othier things, disciss

business specific to that cliqué was discussed. Any perceived indiscretions or violations:
‘of MS-13 rules by membets were talked about at clique meetings and punishirients ot

“yiolations” were issued. Violations often took the form of beatirigs by fellow MS-13

and/or approval o kill.

13 ‘M,S'egl?a;r,eceivcgi money and income from various sources, iinc}udingr_
‘miember dues and the eﬁiitfor,tion:ar"»‘t'az;ing’? of illegitimate :busiinesses;;asVwall’?a;s'ﬁamoﬁies .
trafficking and the commission of'rébberies. Such .ﬁlnds were used for ga,nngUiPQS.cS.,. |
IHCIUdmgobtammg Weapons and providing suppott, forMSI3gangmembers who were

imptisofied in the United States.and in El Salvador.
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14 Ms-13 members communicated about gang detivities with other MS-13

- members in Texas, and eiseyvhere, using mobile teiéﬁho;;qs,.téléphbﬁeiext. messages,
 social media such as Facebook and e-mail accounts, and other modesofcommumcatwn
Addiﬁonally, MS-13 ~members used international money wire transfers to coﬂduct and
_ promote ,ga‘ng activities. | | |

15, MS-13 'vincluding-its leaderShip, meniberéﬁip, andassodi‘a’ces* .Consﬁtu"tefd'{an;
“enterprise,” as deﬁned by 18 US.C. § 1961(4), that is, a group of individuals assoclated
infact, The enterprise: constltuted an ongoing orgamzatxon whose members functwned as
a continuing uhxt fof a gonmon purpose of achieving the objectives of the enterpnse
The enterpnse was engaged in, and its act1v1tles affected interstate and forelgn
commerce; |

Purposes of the Enterprise

16 | The purposes of the MS-13 Enterptise included:

‘4. Preserving:and protectmg the power, terntory, reputatlon; and profits
of the enterpnse through the use of mtnmdatlon, threats of vislence, and vmlence,
| _ mcludmg assaults and murder, |

b, Promotmg and enhancing the enterprise and its Jeaders’; .members and
%assqciétes? acﬁvjifi‘gs? including, but not limited to, murdet, extortion, drug tr;afﬁckinjgi,; v
robb;r;g and other cm%min'a_l" actiﬁii;:s ; | | |

e Kéepiglg victims, potential vvicﬁ‘ms’,‘ and cbn’ﬁmmity n'llem'bér,s“ in féarof :

the enterptise through violence and threats of violence;

Indictment —Page 6.
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d. Pm{;imng financial sup-pog and iiformation to gang leaders, members;
and aséociatés, ing:ludihg" indivi_iiuals:{ihca__rcﬁrgﬁd;i;‘i the Uﬂited?Statés”zaljd in El ‘S_a.'lvad(}r;

e:  Providing assistance to gang lea&érs; inéfnl.%ier_s,,:,and associates who
.cormhitted- cﬁmes,oﬁ behalf of the entérpﬁs::; and o

f ‘Hindering, obstructing, and preventing law enforcement ofﬁCers from:
identifyipgr partici?ants in the enterprisc’é‘crimiﬂal aét_ivity; apprehending the
 perpetrators of those crimes; and ,successfuﬁj} prosecuting and punishing the offenders..

Means and Methods of t’h‘e.Ent‘em»r‘ise
17.  Among the means and methods by which the members and associ‘zitesof
MS-13 conducted and participated in the conduct of the affairs of the enterinris,e were the
following: | |

a.  The membets and associates of MS-1,3 used ';intimidéfjon,-thrcéts of |
violence, and violence, ihéludiﬁgi assaults and murder, to presefv.e,.. expand, anid prqitééf
MS-13 ’s tertitory and ,act_iifities; to lp__rémo_te aﬁd etibiance its prestige, reputation, and
position in the commuity; and to discipline gang members who hdd,beeﬁ--diéléyal or had
_ 'violgied gang rules;

b. The rﬁembérsiiana associates.of MS-13 atterided regular gang mcetings
and communicated yfith other MS:13 members to discuss, among:;.otj'_her»thing's: the: |
structure and iotgaﬁiiaﬁbﬁ of the ga‘n'g__;‘ pést c‘r‘iﬁﬁnal ‘acts'*c'omrﬂ:it_téd against tival gang
m‘eﬁib‘ers. and others; MS-13, iea&eré, members, and associates who had been atrested or
incarcerated; disciplining MS-13 leaders, members, and associates who -ha§¥~\iiolated;gah_g :
rﬁlcs; police inieréétions Wifh ‘MS-13 leaders, memb'er,s, and associates; the ide:;ﬁ"tﬁies of
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individuals suspected of cooperating with law enforcement, and proposed actions to be

taken against them; and pléns and agreements regarding the commission of future crimes, -

as well as ways to conecal these crimes;
c. The members and associates of MS-13-also communicated with other
MS-13 members in Texas and elsewhere, and represented their gang allegiance, through |

social edia siich as Facebook, including by posting photographs of themselves with

other gang miembers, thiowing gang hand sigas, wearing colors or clothing associated

with MS-13, and posing with weapons or gang-related graffiti, and by sending and/or
posting messages referenicing their affiliation with MS-13;
d.  The membersand associates of MS-13 financed the enterprise through

a'variety of éctiviﬁies, including the extortion, ofmpnay»—-;sqmetimés referre'd_tbfa“s _

“paying rent”—from gang members and from legitimate and illegitimate businesses

operating in the gang’s turf, as well.as through the commission of robberies;
e.  The ’membersan&'associates of MS:13 distributed and a_gr‘ee"d' to
distribute controlled Subsiancés_ on behalf of the gang; |
| £ Thefunds raised by the gang were used for gang purposes, including
obtaining Weapons and providing supé.ox*t for MS-13 gang members, including those
imptisoried in the United States; inside and outside of Texas, and in Bl Salvador;
| B- The merﬁnbér,s and associates of MS-1 3..,‘hinc}ered and obstructed the

efforts of law enfotcement to identify, appreheiid, and successfully prosecute and pusiish

‘gang menibers;
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h.  The members-and associates of MS-13 would investigate rival géng

members or other pérsons targeted for violence; would obfain information about such

targets, including locations frequented by them; and would use such information in their

plans tolia'ttaCk such targets; and'

i.  The membets and associates of MS-13 would and did agree that acts of

“murder, including conspiracy and attempts to commit murder, and other acts of violence,

would be committed by members and associates of MS-13 against rival gang membets.

and persons deemed as threats to MS-13 and for the purpose of imposing discipline

 within the gang,-and on other oecasions as déemed riccessary.

The Racketeering Conispiracy

18.  Beginning in dr-ab'.di.ftf:Juiy'ﬁQDfl 6, and continuiiig through on or about the

date of this Indictment, both dates being approxiniate and inclusive, within the Northern

District of Texas, and elsewhere, Rolan Ivan Hernandez-Fuentes, a.k:a. Ivan Fuentes,

‘aXk:a. Tasmania, ak.a. Ronal Ivan Fuentes Hernandez; Jerson Gutierrez-Ramos,

a.k.4. Gerson Gutierrez, ak.a. Sparky; [ N

—, and Kevin Cruz, a.k.a. Street Danger; the défeﬁdants,.tgggther' .

‘with each otherand other petsons kiown and unknown to t_he"G:ahd.Jurg, being persons.

employed by and ’.a;s.s:acfiat;eciwi,th the enterprise, whiéh was engaged in, and the.activities
of which ;affect_écﬁ;, interstate and foteign commerce, knowingly and 1ntentlonally |
_oon,spi_r.e'daté violate ISUSC 8 ’1‘962(:«’:},_ {hiat is, to conduct and participate, difectly and
indirectly, in the conduct of the;affajirsfbf~_that enterprise thfoﬁgh a pattern gfraéxgetecrjgg
activity consisting of multiple 4cts indictable under:

Tndictment - Page 9
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PR

| | a. 18 U.S.C.§ 1951 (relating to interferénce with commeice by robbery
or extortion); . ‘

‘and multiple-acts iﬁVoiVihg:

b. . Murder, in violation of Texas Penal Code §§7. 01,7 02 12, 32 12.33,
15.01,15: 02 15.03, and 19.02;

| c. Robbery, in violation of Texas Penal Code §§ 7.01, 7.02, 12 32
12.33, 15:01, 15.02, 15. 03 29.01, 29.02; and 29.03.

19. It was a further part of the conspiracy that each defendant agreed that a |
- COnspirét_or'Woiild commit at least two acts of racketeering activity in the ;condﬁCt of the
affairs of the enterprise.

20 Tn furtherance .'of the cp;népiracy; and to affect the obj'ect and purposes
therebf,: Rolan Ivan Hernandez-Fuentes, a.K.a. Ivan Fuentes, ak.a. Tasinania, aX.a.
Ronal -Iyén Fuentes Hernandez; Jerson Gutiex:r{éi-l}amqs‘, a.k.a. Gerson Gutierrez,

aka. Sparky; [
" Kev‘i'ﬁ :.Criuz';»a.‘k;-a. Street Danger; the defendants, and othiers known and unknownto ‘
thci@rand Jury, committed'various oveit acts, in the Northern District Qf’Texa_s, and
‘élsewhgre.,‘ including, but not limited to, the féllowi'ng‘:’

21.  Onorabout July 11, 2016; members and associates of the ILS ‘cquize:.cf“
MS~13 s’prayﬁpain_téd MS-]3 graffiti in Rosgm‘_eadow' Park,-ih Irving, Texas.

22, On mlﬂtiple occasions from on or about July' 2-'1:1~ 20 16 tﬁfoughon*bf abbut‘
September ! 25,201 7, members and associates of the ILS clique of MS-13 held clique 7

| meetings in multlple locatlons in'the v1om1ty of Irving, Texas, mcludmg several pubhc
p‘arks anda t‘_unﬂel under Irving, Texas.
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* Case 3:18-0r-00333-B Document8 Filed 07/11/18 Page 11 0f 41 PagelD 118

23. From iti-or about June 2017, through on or ébout July 2017, 1members and
associates of the IS clique of MS-13 conducted Surveillancc of rivals of MS-13,
mcludmg by using Facebook, as partof a consplracy to mulder rivals of MS-13.

Julv 14,2017 Dal]as Texas

s Ori or about July 14, 2017, in' Dallas, Texas, ,HernandezeFﬁentes,
— Gutierrez-Ramos, and other members and associates of MS-13, |
| conspired to kill Vﬁctiﬁ4.'1, a membef or associate of the rival 18th Street Gang by
stnkmg and stabbmg Victim-1. H |
25.  On or about July 14,2017, in- the 5600 block of Spring Valley Road m

| Dallas, Texas, Hernandez-Fuentes, . Guticrrez-Ranios; and other _‘
_me‘mbefs and assoc‘ia’te_s of 'MS~,13_, using a machete and other .weapons‘-,fatte.mpfed to Kill

- 26. On or about July 14,2017, in the 5600 block of Spnng Valley Road in |
Dallas Texas, Hernandez-Fuentes, . Gutlerrez-Ramos, and other
members and associates of MS-13, usmg a machete and othet- weapons attempted to kill
'Vlct1m~2‘by’ s_'trikmg‘ and Stabbln‘g:-VIQtlmﬂiZ; |

Julv 15.2017: Tiving, Texas

2. On or about July 15, 2017, ini the 200 block of West Rochelle Road, in
Irving, Texas, Hernandez-Fuentes ]I, Gutierrez-Ramos, and other
" members and associates of MS-13, using a machete, robbed heroin from a drug dealer,

Victim=3.
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28.  Onor about July 15, 2017, i the 200 block of West Rochelle Road, in -

Irving, Texas, Hernandez-Fuentes, [, Gutierrez-Ramos, and other

members and associates of MS-13, using a machete; detnanded a 'futurﬁe"pgrcentage of the

. drug business of Victim-3, in the form of drugs and ,mdngy;

29, én or dbout Tuly 15, 2017, in the 200 bioc‘k- of Wést;Reéhcfil‘e'Réad,’ in
~ Irving, Teﬁas,, Hernahdez%Fuentes, —, 'Gﬁtiérréz-Ramos, 'ant':_i ‘Q‘:thér
rﬁémbers and aé's:o,ciiités\of MS-13, ﬁsing a machete, assaulted V1ct1rn-3 .

- August 2017: Dallas, Texas

30.  On orabout August 9, 2017, in the 3000 block of Webb Chapel Exiension,

iri Dallas, Texas; Hernandez-Fuentes, Gutierrez-Ramos, Crnz; and other members and

‘associates of MS-13, using aknifé, slédgehammer, and other weapons, assaulted Victini:-
4,2 member or associate of the rival 18th Sireet Gang, by striking and stabbing Victim-4.
31.  Onorabout August9, 2017, in the 3000 block of Webb Chapel Extension, -

in Dallas, Texas, Hernandez-Fuentes, Gutierrez-Ramos, Cruz, and othei members and

associates of MS-13, using:a knife, sledgehammer, and other weapons, 5tté11iptéd to kill

Victim-4; by stiiking and:'stabbin‘g”V:iCﬁm-4.

August 19, 2017: Irving, Texas
32, Onorabout August 19, 2017, in the 1900 block of Edst Grauwyler Road, in

' Irving; Texas, Hernandez-Fuentes, Gutierrez-Ramos, Cruz, and other members and
associates of MS-13, using & metal bat, robbed money from a member-or associate of the

rival 18th Stieet Gang, Victim-5,
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. '33.  On orabout August 19, '?'2'017-‘in the 1900'bl'o'cksof”East'GrauwyledeaH' in

- Irving,. Texas Hernandez—Fuentes, Gutlerrez»Ramos, Cruz, and-other members and

‘ assomatesaf MS—lS usmg a metal bat assaulted Victim-5.

34, In ot about the:middle of August 2017, through on or abiout August 20,

2017, in Dallas, Texas, Hérﬁaﬁdezél?ﬁentes; Gutierrez-Ramos, CI‘IIZ, and other

the rival 1 Sth Street Gan; g-

35, Inor about the middle of August 2017, Hernandez~Fuentes, Gutlen:ez-
Ramos, Cruz, and other members and assoclates of MS—13 usmg a female member and
Victim=6.

36.  Onorabout August 20,2017, Hernandez-Fuentes, Gutierrez-Ramos,

" Cruz, and other members and associates of MS-13, using a female'member-and associate

of MS-13, lured Victim-6 to a second patkiin Dallas, Texas, as part of a plan to Kill

Victim:=6:
37. Onor about August 20, 2017, at an apartmeit somplex, in Dallas, Texas,

Hernandez—Fuentes, Gutlerrez-Ramos, Cruz, and other members and associates of

] MS-13, atteripted to kill Victimn-6: by attempting to fire a shotgun at Vlctlm 6.
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September 25, 2017: Irviﬁg,jTéxas_

| '. 38.  From inor about the beginning of Séptembef"ZOI?,‘.thfgﬁgh 'on,orfabout |
September 25, 2017, at various looati‘c?nS in the Dallas, Texas area, and étRunningiBear |
Park, in Irving, Texas, Hernanﬂez;li‘néntes, Gutierréz~Ramos; Cruz, and 6t‘h§r |
ﬁéembsrs and associates of MS-13, conspired to kill Vietim-7,-a member or associate of
the rival 18th Street Gang.

39. On or abouf"Scpﬂfaﬁib,er 25,2017, Hemandez}-‘l?‘?uentess._Guﬁ_erréZeRamos,
Cruz, and other membeis andsa“sjs’_ociateé of MS-13, lured Victim-7'to Runining Bear Park, |
in Irvirig, Te:{és,‘ usmgtheruse of purphasing a tattoo machiné from ViCt,,im-? as part ofa
plan to kill Vietim-7. |

40. Onor about September 25, 2017, at Runniﬁg Bear Park, i Tvitig, Texas,
‘Hernandez-Fuentes, Gi_’l_tierréz-Ramos, Cfuz, and-éther members and gs‘soéiate_'s_'df
MS-13, usin‘g';vaﬂ 'éhdt’g‘un, machetes, and other weapons, attempted to ktllVlctlmﬂ by
striking and stébbi'gjg Victim:7 anci firing a shotgun at Victim=7.

41. 'On(’;rﬁabout September 25, 2017 , at Rutining Bear Park, m Irving,-TéXas?:
HernandézeFuénics, Giut'i'erréz.-Ra'mos,_:Cruz, and other membets and associates of
‘MS-13, using a Shotéun,'rmachetcs, and other weapons, aft'tempted to kill Victim-8 by
Strikiﬁg and stabbing Victim-8. | .

42. Onor about September 25, 2017, at Running Bear Park; in Irving, Te’ias,
’H@mande_z@,l?ﬁentes,- Giitierrez-Ramos, .C:rix,;z., and other members and associates of
MSl3,using &i'sﬁdtgl}tl;ima(;;iictes, and other weapons; attempted to kﬂl Victim-9 by

*striking and stabbing Victim-9.
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43, ,en or about Septemberzszol 7, dt Running Bear Park; in Irving, Texas,
A Hernandez:i?nentesj,-éfgﬁerrezéRamos-,;(:xuz, and other tiiembers and associates of
MS-13; using a shot_‘gun,; macﬁete‘s‘i.and(}ther weapons, attempted ie:.ki”ll Victim410'by
strlkmg and: stabbmg Viotim-10.. | | |

| 44,  Onorabout September 25,2017, at Running Bear Park, in’ Irvmg, Texas,
Hernandez-Fuentes, Gutlerrez-Ramos, Cruz, and other members and associates of
MS- 13 usmg a shotgun, machetes, and other weapons robbed Victim-7, V:ictlm—S
-V1ct1m—9 and Vlctlm-lo of cellular telephones and other valuables.

SDeCIal Sentencmg Factors. Regardmg Count: One

| -45.  On or about July 15,2017, in the Northem Disttict of Texas; Hernandez—
Fuentes, Gutlerrez-Ramos, and - aided and abetted by ¢ach other’ and
others- known and unknown to the Grand Jury, _d1d comiit an-act mvolving robbery, that
is; aggravated robbery, as Hernandez—Fuentes, Gntlerrez—Ramos, and—
a1ded and abetted by each other and others, in the coursg’ of oommxtmng theft and W1th
mtent to-obtain and maintait control of the property,: intenitionally; knowingly, and
recklesshy caused bodﬂymlury to.another-and used and exhibited a deadly weapon; th‘at
1s a machete, and mtentmnally, knowxlgly, and. recklessly threatened and placed another
in fear of imminent bodily injury and death and used and e;dnb;ted a deadly ‘weapon, that
:-i,s_t,_,,:ia-‘machete,; all in violation of Texas Penal Code §§ 7:01, 702, 12.:32,29:01 ,2902, and
| 29.03. |
46, On.or about August 19, 2017, in the Northern Dlstnctof Texas,

‘Hernandeéz-Fuentes, Gutierrez-Ramos, and Cruz; aided and abetted by each O_the‘f and |
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others knowi: and unlcnown to the Grand Jury, did comnut an act ,i"nvtﬂv.ing robbery, that :
is, aggraVafed robbery, as Herhahdéi—ﬁuentés, Gutierrez-Ramos, and Cruz, aided and
abetted by each other and others, in .ﬂxe'c{aurs'e of committing theft and Wiih-inteni»td
ébtain and maintain c‘ont'réi éf the property,- infeg%’i’bnally, knowiﬁgly, and recklessly
caused bodily injury-to another and used and exhibited a deadly Weap'dn, thatis, a metal
bat, and intentionally, knowingly, and recklessly threatened and placed another m fear of
imminent bodily injury and death and used and exﬁibited a deadly weapon, that is, a.
‘metal bat, all in violatiofi of Texas, Penal Code §'§ 7.01, 7.02, 12.-32—,‘2-2“9}011 ,29.02,and
29.03: | |
47.  On orabout September 25, 2017,‘in the Northern District of Texas,
Hernandez-Fuentes, Gutierrez-Ramos, and Cruz, aided’ and abetted by each other and
others known and unknown 1o the Grand-Jury, did commit an ‘act involving tobbexy; t_hz.it
is, aggtavated robbety, as Hernandez-Fuentes, Gutie‘rrebRa@s; and Crug, aided and
abetted by each other and others, in the coutse of committing theft and with intent to
obtain and maintain control of the property; intentionally, ldxéQViﬁle, anid '.fééklf?SSlY’ B
caused bodily injury to another and used and exhibited ‘déa’dly weapots, to wit, a s’hbtéuxi
and machetes, and intentionally, knowi‘n‘g]y, and recklessly t‘hr‘ea‘t’ened--aﬁd"pﬁcediandthéf~
in fear of 1mmmentbod11y injury and death and used and oxhibited deadly weapons, td:
| wit, a shotgun and machetes, all in "vioiatioh of Texas Penal Code §§ 7.01,-,,'*./;02‘, 12.32,
29.01,29.02, and 29.03. o |
| 48.  On or about Septeniber 25, 2017:,~ii.1‘th‘c'_ Northern District of Texas,,

Hernandez-Fuentes, Gutierrez-Ramos, and Cruz, aided and abetted by each other and
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others known and unknown to the Grand Juty, did commit an act involvitig robbery, thiat

is, aggravated robbery, as Hernandez-Fuentes, Gutierrez-Ramos, and Cruz, aided and

abeted by othets, i the course of committing theft and with intent to obtain and mafntain

control of the property, intentionally, knowingly, aiid recklessly caused bodily injury to

another and used and exhibited deadly weapons, to wit, a shiotgun and machetes, and
intentionally, knowingly, and recklessly threatened and placed another in fear of
imminent bodily injury and death and used and exhibited deadly weapons, to wit, a

shotgunand machetes, all in violation of Texas Penal Code §§ 7.01; 7.02; 12.32, 29 01,

29.02, #nd 29.03.

49, Onor abo‘litheptember 25,2017, in the Northern Disirict of Texas,
Hernandez-Fuentes, Gutierrez-Ramos, and (:_n%u“z,}aided ‘a}iﬂ‘éab@t_tﬁd.byﬁﬁé@h other and

others known and unknowh to the Grand Jury, did cominit ari act ifivolving robbery, that

s, aggfavafea»f&sbefy,‘-agzmrnaﬁaez:Fueﬁtes; Giitierrez-Ramos, aﬁ& Criiz; 'aidea’;aﬁd =

abetted eachiother and others, in the course of* commlttmg theft and w1th intent to obtam .

bodxly meytoanotherandused and exhibited deadly weapons, tvo»th,—a. .shotgun and.

machetes, and intentionially, knowingly, and recklessly threatened and placed anothet in

fear of imminent bodily injury and death and used.and extiibited deadly weapons, to-wit,
a shotgun-and machetes:,;_:al‘l in viélation of Texas Penal Code §§ 7.01, 7.02; 12.32, 29.01, -
29:02; and 29.03. | |

50. - On‘or about September 25, 2017, in'the NoﬁhemDistfiic;f-nf Texas,

‘Hernandez-Fuentes, Gutierrez-Ramos, and Cruz, aided and abetted by ach other and
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~ others known and @knowﬂ--fo the Grand Jury, did con'n'nitvé‘n act involving 'Iﬁbbéry, that |
- 18, aggravated robbery, as Hernandez—Fuentes, Guherrez-Ramos, and Cruz, aided and
: abetted by each other and others, in the course of comrmttmg theft and w1th mtent to
obtain and folaintain control of the property, mtennonally, knowmgly, and reckless]y
caused bodily injury to aﬂqﬁthé.i;r and used and exhiblted deadly Weapons,:-to wit, a shotguin
and machetes, and intentionally, lm(jw'in‘giy, and recklessly threatened and placed another -
| in*-‘f@f offirr;minent bodily injury-and death and used and exhibited deadly weapons, to
-~ wit,a shotgun and machetes, all in violation of Texas ‘Pc’nall_Codé §§ 7.01, 7.02 1232,
29.01,29.02, and 29.03. | | | |
In v101at10n of 18 US.C. § 1962(d) the penalty for Whlch is found at 18 U.S.C.

§ 1963@.

 Indictment — Page 18




Case 3:18-cr-00333-B Document 8 Filed 07/11/18 | Page 19 of 41 PagelD 126

Count Two a
Conspxracy to Commit Murder in Aid of Racketeering
(V iolation of 18 U.S. C §§ 1959(a)(5)) '
51, - Paragraphs 1-through 17 of Count One of this Indictment are mcorporated
‘here,
s2. MS$-13, including its leadership, membership, and méc‘iatea constituted a'n'
enterprise as deﬁned in18U. S C 9§ l959(b)(2) that is, a group of mdmduals associated
in fact that engaged in, and the actwmes of which affected mterstate and foreign
commerce (f‘t‘he Entérprise*’:) The.;.EnterpﬁSe constitiited an ongoing organization whose:
‘tembers functloned as a contmumg umt for a common purpose of achieving the |
Obj ectives of the Enterpnse
53 " The Enterprise; through itsﬁ‘:eﬁﬂiers, legders, and associafes, engagjed,_fiﬁ <
vracketeeﬁng"activi‘gyv,.as defined in 18 USC §§ 1959(b)(1), and 1961(1), thé}t is acts
. fﬁvolving ﬁmrder, in violation of Texas Law .
54,  .Onor about July 14, 2017 in the Northem District of Texas, Rolan Ivan
, Herhandez—Fuentes, ak.a. Ivan Fuentes, ak.a. Tasmama, ak.a, Ronai Tvan Fuentes
' ’Hernandez;a Jerson Gutierrez-Ramos, ak.a. Gerson Gutierrez, a.k.a. Sp.arlsy,
Y s
' »'Wﬂfredo Cabrera—Cruz, a.K.d. Cristin Benjamin Vigll, ak.a. Mama, the defendants
for the PUTPOSE of gaining entrance to, and maintaining and i increasing posmon in MS« 13,

an enterpnse engaged in racketeermg actmty, did knowingly and willfully combme,
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' conspire, confederate, and agree with each other, and others known;
Grand J'u_,_ry, to mutder Victim-1, in violation of Texas Penal Code §§ 15.02 and 1902

In-violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1959(a)(5).
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Count Three ,
- Attempted Murder in Aid of Racketeenng
(Violation of 18 U, S.C. §§ 1959(a)(5) and 2)
55 Piaretgraphs,‘51‘thf<ﬁ>‘ﬁgh53 of Count Two of this Indiotment are ine;érpprated
here. ‘ : |
56. Onor _abéiit July 14,2017, in the Northern District of Texas, Ro‘lan Ivan
Hernahdﬁzﬁ-FuentéSs akia, Ivan Fuentes, a.k.a. Tasmania; a-k.-a-;anal VIVa'l’_lv F‘“ént_elﬁf
Hernandez; Jerson Gutierrez-Ramos, aka, Gerson G“ﬁ‘f#ﬂ&; akea, Sparky; and
I et
 together with others known and unknown to the Gra';@'d Jury, for fhe'_p'ufﬁose of gaining
‘e;ntfancé to, and maintairiing and mCréasing position in .MS‘el?:', an enterprise engaged in
A fai:'keteeﬁngaact:iviﬁy, aiding and-abetting one another, did attemp}t‘ tozmur'de_r Vietim-1, in
violation of Texas Penal Code §§ 7.01, 7.02, 15.01, and 19.02.

In violation of 18 US.C. §§ 1959(a)(5) and 2.
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Count Four
Atternpted Murder in Aid of Racketeenng
- (W 1olat10n of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1959(a)(5) and 2)
57 . ‘Paragraphs 51 through 53-of Count Two of this Inq;c,tment are incorpbrafed
here.
- 58. "on ot abouf July 14, 2017, in the Northern District of Te"xas,i Rolan I'van_
Hernandez—Fuentes, a.k.a. Ivan Fuentes, a.k.a. Tasmania; a JKaa. Ronal Ivan Fuentes
| ‘Heihandez; Jerson Gutierrez-Ramos; a.k.a. Gerson Gutierrez; a.k a Sparky, and
_ the defendants‘z:
together with- others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, for the purpose of galmng
entrance 10, and maintaining and mcreasmg posmon in MS-13, an entetprise: engaged in
rackgteeﬁng_ activity, aidin“g:andiabe{ting one,anoth'er,. did attempt to murder Vietim-2, in
violation of Texas Penal Code §§ 7.01,7.02, 15.0 1, and 19.02.

In violation of 18 U.8.C. §§ 1959(a)(5) and 2.
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Count Five
Assault with a Dangetous Weapon in Aid of Racketeenng
(V 1olat10n of 18 U.S.C. §§1959(a)(3) and 2)
59. Pairiagfaph§ 51 through 53 of Count Two of this Indmtment are incorporated
here. | |
60.  On or about July 15 2017, in the Noithern District of Texas; Rolan Ivan
Hernandez-Fuentes; ‘a;k’;a,, Ivan Fientes, a:k.a. Taémania;;g._k-‘a._Roxial Ivan 'Filiént‘e‘s‘ '
I%I'él‘nfa‘n_dez;_ﬁ.] erson Gutierrez-Ramos, .a;ka_. Gerson Gutierrez, -‘a';k:a. 'Sparky_; 'a‘nczi
N - s,
together with»otheré'kr;own and unkiiown to the Grand Jury, for the purpose of ;gai‘u:ing‘
entrance to, and maintaining and i mcreasmg posmon in MS-13, an enterpnse engagedin
| vracketeenng actlwty, aiding and abettmg one another, did assault V1ct1m—3 with a.
dar;gerous weapon, that 'is,-,«,a machete, in violation of Texas.Eqnavaodej§i_§, LO7()(17), "
7.01 1,_'71.02; 224;0‘1,» and 22.02. | |

T violation of 18 US.C. §§ 1959(a)(3) and 2.
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.Count Six
Assault with a Dangerous Weapon in' Aid of Racketeering
(Violation of 18 u.s. C §8 1959(2)(3)-and 2) |

61. Paragraphs 51 through 53 of Count Two of this Indictment are mcorporated'
here. |

62.‘ On or about August 9, 2017, in the Northern District of Texas, Rolan Ivan :
| HernandezeFuentes, a k a, Ivan Fuentes, a.k.a. Tasmania, a.ka, Ronal Ivan Fuentes o

'Hernandez, Jerson Gutierrez-Ranios, 4 X.a. Gerson Gutlerrez, ak.a. Sparky, and

| Kevm Cruz, ak:a. Street Danger, the defendants, together with others known. and
unknown tothe Grand Jury, for the purpose of gaining entrance to, and mamtalmng and
increasing posmon in MS-13, an enterpnse engaged in raoketeemng actmty, axdmg and
abcttmg one another, chd assault Victim-4 with a dangerous Weapon, that'is; a knife, in

violation of Texas Penal Code §§ 1.07(2)(17), 7.01, 7.02, 22, 01 and 22.02.

in violation of 18U.S.C. §§ 1959(2)(3) and 2.
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| Count Seven
- Attempted Murder in Aid of Racketeering

(Vlolatlon of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1959(&)(5) and 2)

63. Par'a'graphs 51 t]ii*()ugh 53 of Co}int Two ‘of this Indlotmgnt are iﬁ}ioﬁ_rp()'tated a
here. | |

. Onar aboﬁ; August 9, 2017, in the Northern Distriot of Texas, Rolan Tvan
. Hérﬁandez;Fnéntes, a.k.a. Tvan Fuentes, aik;.fa;Tas'm'ahia, ak.a: Ronal Ivap Fu'eﬁ'te's' 3
Hernandez; Jerson _G,litiertézeRamOS, ak.a. Gerson Guﬁerrle‘z; a.ka. Sparky; and
Kéviil Cni‘z, aX.a. Street Danger; the defendants, together with others known and
“unknown to the Grand Jury, for the purpose of gaining entrance to, and mamtammg and
increasmg posmon in MS-13, afi enterpnse engaged in. rackcteenng act1v1ty, aldmg and
ab'etting,one ancther, did attempt io murder Victim-4, in violation of Texas,Penal Code
§§ 7.01, 702 15.01, and1902 |

In vxolatlon of 18 U.S.C. 88 1959(3,)(5) and 2.

* Indictment — Page 25




Case 3:18-¢r-00333-B ‘Document 8 Filed 07/11/18 Page 26 of 41 PagelD 133

Count Fi ght '
Assault with a Dangerous Weapon in Aid of Racketeermg
(Violation of 18 U.S:C. §§ 1959(2)(3) and 2)
65. Paragraphs 51 through 53 of Count Two of tlns Tndictment are: mcmporated |
here. | |
66.  Onor about-August 19, 2017, in the Northern District of T e?ias.,vl'l'blan
Ivan Hernandez-Fuentes, a.k. a. Ivan Fuentes, a.k;m Thsmﬁnié;,-‘a;keé; Ronal Ivan
Fuentes Hernandez, Jerson. Gutlerrez~Ramos, ak.a. Gerson Gutierrez, aa.
Sparkys;. Kevm Cruz, ak.a, Street Danger, and Jose' Armando Saram—Romero,
aka. J ose Saravna, ak.a. Mandy; ak.a. Pmky, the defendarits, togcther with others
known and unknown to the Grand Jury, for the purpose of gaining entrance to, and
maintaining and increasing position in M.S:IS,, an cntelfpr,ls,ﬁ? engaged m rackct,e.,efm&
that is, a metal bat, in vmlatlon of Texas Penal Code §§ 1. 07(a)(17), 7.01,7.02,22. 01

and 22,02,

T viclation of 18 U.S-C. §§ 1959(a)(3) and 2.
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Count Nine =
Conspiracy to Commit Musder in Aid of Racketeefing
~ (Violation of 18 U.S8.C. § 1959(a)(5))
67.  Paragraphs 51 through 53 of Count Two of tIns Indictiment are 1ncorporated
here. |
68. Frominor aboﬁt-'the‘iﬁiddle of August 2017, ‘t‘h‘r,ough on or about August, |
20, 2017,in° the‘ﬁNofthém'Ig)jiS‘ti-‘iQt of Texds, Rolan Ivan HeriggndezaFﬁenfes,-»‘a‘.,k.xa.vI‘vanﬂ.
Fuentes, ak.a. Tasmania, ‘a.'k-.i\;.iRﬁﬁnalA Ivan Fuentes 1_Hérnandez‘; J erson Gutierrez-
Rziiﬁbs, ak.a. Gerson Gutierrez, aJa. S“parky‘;f Kevin Criz; a.k.a. Stree.t’l)anger;_'
and Jose Ariando Sarawa—Romero, ak.a. Jose Saravia, a. k.a. Mandy, ak.a. Pmky,
the déféndants-, for the pur‘pose of gaining: entrance 1o, and -rnamtammg and 1ncrcasmg
posmon in MS-13; an enterpnse engaged in racketeering activity, d1d knowingly atid
, willfully combitie, conspire, confederate and agree with each othet, and others known
and unknown to the Grand Ji ury, to murder Victim-6, in. leatlon of Texas Penal Code §§ -
15.02 and '1'-'9.02;

In violation of 18 U'S:C. § 1959(2)(5)-
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Count Ten
Attempted Murder in. Aid of Racketecnng
(Violation of 18 US.C. §8 1959(a)(5) and 2)
69.  Paragraphs 51 through 53 of Count Two of this Indictment are inﬁi@rgidratéd
here. | | |
70. - On or about August 20, 2017, in the Northein District of Texas, Rolan
Ivan Hernandez-»Fuentes, a.k a. Ivan Fuentes, a.k.a. Tasmania, a. k . Ronal Ivan
| Fuentes Hernandez; Jerson Gutlerrez—Ramos, ak.a. Gerson Guﬁerrez, aka.
Sparky, and Kevin Criiz, a.K.a. Street Danger; the defendants, together with others
known and \inknowh to the Grand Jury, for the purpose of galmng entrance 1o; and
miaihtaining and incteasing position in MS-13, an enterptise engaged 1n.raeketeenng
'actiﬁty, aiding .faild‘,abi'etfing one another, did attempt to murd_ér Vicfiin~6, in violation of
“Texas Penal Code §§ 7.01, 7.02, 15.01, and i,9.02.

n violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1959(a)(5) and 2.
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Count Eleven
Possessing: and Brandishing a Fireari in Furtherance of a Crime of Violence
(Violation of 18 U.S. C 8§ 924((:)(1)(A)(u) and 2)

7. | Paragraphs 51 through 53 of Count Two of this Indlctment are mcorporated
here. .

72, On ot dbout August 20, 2017, in the Notthern District of Texas, Rolan
“Ivan Hernandez-Fuentes, a Jk.a. Ivan Fuentes, ,a.ki;fa:. ‘TaSmania;_ a.k.a. Ronal Ivan
Frieites Hei'nandez, Jerson: Gutxerrez—Ramos, a. k a. Gerson Gutierrez, a.k A |
‘Sparky; and Kevin Cruz, ak &8 Street Danger; the defendants, together with others
known and unknown to :theaGrand Jury, aiding and abetting eac.h other, did kiiowingly
possess aﬁd’brandish a ﬁrearm in furtherance of a crime of violence for which they may

be proeecuted ina court of the United States, to w1t Attempted Murder in Aidof

Rackc:’tecring, as charged in Count Ten of this Indictment, in violation of 18 u.s: C.§§

1959(2)(5) and 2.

In viclation of 18 U.S:C. §§ 924(c)(1)(A)(H) and 2.
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~ Coung Twelve
Consplracy to Commit Murder in Aid of Racketecring

(leatmn of 18U.S.C. § 1959(a)(5))

73.. Paragraphs 5 1 through 53 of Count Two of this Indlcttnent are mcorporated
here. |

_74.‘ From in:or about the begmnmg of September 2017, through om or about
September 25 2017, in the Northem Dlstnct of Texas, Rolan Ivan Hernandez—Fuentes, -
a.kqa. Ivan Fuentes, a. k a. Tasmama, ak.a. Ronal Ivan Fuentes Hernandez, Jerson
Gutierrez-Ramos; a._k;a',-- Gerson Gutierrez, a.k.a. Sparky; Kevin Cruz, aX.a. Street.
Danger; Mangéi Amaya-Al‘varéz,- a,;l{;a:._Manueli-Amaya, aka Ghoc&iﬂtg; and |
Jonathan .A'leixa‘ndér Baires, a.k:a. S}iﬁﬁter; the:defendants, for the purpose of -‘gaihhlg'
entra“nce_;to,;;::andlmzﬁintaiﬁing_;and increasing position in MS-1 3, an enterprise engaged in
racketeering activity, did knowingiy and willfiilly combine, conspire, coﬁfederafg,. and
agree- with each other, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, to murder
Vlcumﬂ in vmlauon of Texas Penal Code §§ 15.02 and 19.02. |

Tn violation of 18 U.S,C,_ §1959(a)(5).
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Count Thirteen
Attempted Murder in Aid of Racketeeritig
(Vlolatlon of 18 US.C. §§ 1959(&)(5) and 2)

75.  Paragraphs 51 throug}l.SS of Courit Two of this Indlotmﬁﬁt are ingorporated.

. here.

76.  Onorabout September 25, 2017, in the Northern District of Texas, Rolan

Ivan Hefn'ahdez:i?uentes, a.k.a. I{fan Fﬁéhtes.;»=a,k@a. Tasmania; a;kzé.jl_lon‘al Ivzin’ =
'Fuentes Hernander Jerson Gutierrez—Ramos, ak.a, Gerson Gutlerrez, aka.
Sparky; Kevin Cruz, a.k.a. Street Danger; Manuel Amaya—Alvarez, a.ka. Manuel E
Amaya, a.k.a. Chocolate, and- Jonathan Alexander Baires; a.k:a. Splmter, the ’
dcfendants together with. others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, for the purpose :
of gammg entrance to, and, mamtammg and mcreasmg position in M8+ 13 an enterpnse
enga_g_e.d in racketeering- activity; aiding and abetting one a;xoth.e:, did attempt to murder_
Victim.7, in violation of Texas Penal Code §§ 7.01, 7.02, 15.01, and 19.02.

 In violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1959(a)(5) and 2.
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- Count Fourteen
Possessing; Brandxshmg, and Discharging
‘a Firearm in Furtherance of a Crime of Violeiice o
(Violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 924(c)(I(A)i), 924(e) (A0, 924(e)(1)(C)(0), and 2)

7. Pavagraphs 51 through 53 of Coufit Two of this Indictment are mcorporatedv
- here.. | ' .
78.  Onor about September 25, 20117]", in the Northiéin District of Teas, Rolan
' Ivan Hernandez-Fuentes, ak.a, Ivan Fuentes, a.a. Tasmania, a.k.a. Ronal Ivan
Tuenites Hernandez; Jerson Gutierrez-Ramos, a.k:a, Gerson Gitierrez, ak.a.
Sparky; Kevin Cruz, a.K.a. Street Danger; Manuel Amnaya- Alvarez, ?-kaa- Mariuiel
Amaya, a.k:a, Chocolate; and Jonathan Alexander Baires,va;k;a..‘Splintén; the

| aefendants;”t;ogethcr with others kr;cwn and unknown to the Grand Jury, aiding and
abetiing sach other, did kaniﬁgly possess, brandish, and discharge 2 firearm in

furtherance of a erime of vnolencc for which they may be prosecuted’in a court ofithe

“United States, to wit: Attempted Murder in.Aid of Racketeering; as charged in Cou;nt .
| Thirteen of this Indictment; in v’xola’u‘,on of 18US.C. ‘;§__§_:.-l95_.9(3)(5)—_and 2. .
In.violation of 18 USC §§ 924(c)(1)(A)G), 9%24({3)_(1)(A)(iii), and 2, f,asia_pp’jli‘,ed}to: .
Amaya-Alvarez and Baires. |
In violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 924(c)INC)), and 2; as. apphed to Hernandez~ |

 Fuentes, Gutierrez-Ramos, and Qr.uz-
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Count Fifteen
Attempted Murder in Aid of Racketeering
(Violation of 18 U. S.C. §§ 1959(a)(5) and 2)

79.  Paragraphs 51 through 53 of Count Two of this Indlctment are incorporated
‘here. | | |

80. Onor about September 25,2017, in the Northern sttnct of Texas, Rolan
.Ivan Hernandez—Fuentes, ak.a. Ivan Fuentes, a.k.a: Tasmania, a.k.a ‘Ronal Ivan .
:Fuentes Hernandez' Jerson. Gutlerrez-Ramos, a.k.a, Gerson Gutierrez, a.k.a
Sparky;. Kevm Cruz, a.k.a. Street Danger; Manuel. Amaya-Alvarez, a.k.a. Manuel
Amaya, a.k:a. Chocolate; and Jonathan. Alexander Ban*es, ak.a. Splmter, the
defendants, wgether' with others known and unknown 1o the Gx‘eind Jufy,x for the purpose.
of gammg entrance to, aud maintaining and incréasing position in MS 13- an entérpri‘se
engaged in racketeenng activity, a 1d1ng and abetting one another, did attempt-to murder

Vietim-8, in violation of Texas Penal Code §§ 7.01, 7.02, 15.01, and 19.02.

“n violation of 18 U.S.C: §§ 1959(a)(5) and 2.

Indictment - Page 33




Case 3:18-cr-00333-B  Document 8 Filed 07/11/18 Page 34 of 41" PagelD 141

Count. Sixteen .
Atterpted Murder in Aid of Racketeenng
(Violation of 18 U:S.C. §§ 1959(2)(5) and 2)

81, Paragiaphs 51 through 53 of C:ountTWO ‘of this Indictment are z‘incorporat'eil
here. | | |

82. On ér about September 25; fZQI 7, in the Not*théﬁl District of Texas,. Rolan |
Ivan He‘rnandez;Fuentés,"a.k;,aﬁ’f. Ivan Fuentes, a.k.a. Tasmania, a.k:a.' R'onal’ilvan
Fuentes Heman dez; Jerson Gutierrez-Ramos, ak.a. ‘Gerson Gutlerrez, a.k.a.
Sparky, Kevm Criz, a.k.a. Street Danger, Manuel Amaya—Alvarez, ak.a. Manuel
Amaya, a.k.a. Chocolate; and Jonathan Alexander Balres; ak.a, Splinter; the
defendants, together with others known and unknown to the Grand Juey, for the purpose
of gaining. entrance to, and maintaining and increasing position in MS-13; an enterpnse
: engagcd in racketeenn g. act1v1ty, aiding and abetting one another, dld attempt to murder
Victim-9, in violation of T exas ,P,e,nal»;(}od@ .§§7.01, 7.02, 15.01, and 19.02,

In violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1959(2)(5) and 2:
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: Count Seventes
Attempted Murder in Aid of Racketeenng
(Vlo[atlon of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1959(a)(5) and 2)

83. Faragraphs_‘Sllﬂthr_ough 53 of Court Two of thls Indicnnent:are;incorpo_rate_d
here.. | | | | o

84. Onor about September 25, 2017, in the NOﬂﬁem{Disfrinof Texasq Rolan
Ivan Her.nandezaﬁéntes, aJk.a, Ivan 'Fuentes, ak.a. “Tésmailia,' a'.ksé.:f Ron.:il‘l"van
Fuentes Hernandez, Jerson Gutierrez-Ramos; a.k.a. Gerson Gutlerrez, a. k.a. :
Sparky; Kevin Cruz, a.k.a. Street Danger; Manuel Amaya—Alvarez, a.k.a. Manuel ,
Amaya, aka. Chocolate, and Jonathan Alexander Balres, a.k a. Splmter, the
defcndants together with- others. lcnown and unknown to the Grand Jury, for the purpose
~ of gaining entrance to, and mamtammg and increasing position in MS 13 an enterpnse
engaged in racketeering ac.tivity, aiding and abetting ﬁﬂé-aﬁothef,didattempi to muxderk
Vietim-10, in violation of Texas Penal Code §§ 7.01, 7.02, 15.01,and 19.02.

In violation of 18 U.S.C: §§ 1959(a)(5) and 2.
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‘Count Bighteen
Illegal Alien in Possession of 2 Firéarm
(Violation of 18 U:S.C. §§ 922(g)(5) and: 2)

| 85, | On or aboiit Séptember 25, 2017, in the N.qrthe_rn District of Texas, Rolén'
Tvan Hernande;sﬁi;entesi aX.a. Ivan Fuentes, a.k.a. TAsmania, ak.a. Ronal Ivan
Fuenté‘s H‘ernan'dez" J ersbn’Gutierrez—Ramoé, ak.a. 'Gers;)n Gu‘fiérrez,‘:aikﬁ;a. |
Sparky, Kevin Cruz, a. k.a Streét Danger, Manuel Amaya~Alvarez, aka, Manuel
| Amaya, a.k.a. Choco]ate, and Jnnathan Alexander Baires, a. k a, Splinter; the
defendants, together with othe‘r‘sknown and unknow_n to the GrandJupy:,_jaldmg abeﬁing
one,anbfhc‘r,;.ﬂien each being an alien:.i'i_le‘gally-and unlawfully in the United States, did
I_mowingly possess in and affecting:interstate commercefa_ﬁrem itha,ii xs, a Yimeng,
tmodel YL12-112B, 12 gange pump shotgun, bearing serial number 9522812,

In violation of 18 U.8.C. §§ 922(g)(5) and 2.
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F orfelture Nottce
(18 Us.C. § 924(d) and.28 U. S C § 2461(0))

86. Upon corviction for the offenses allegediin Counts: Eleven, Fourteen, and.
‘Eighteen of thls Indlctment and pursuant to 18 US.C. § 924(d) and 28 US.C. § 2461(0)
Rolan Ivan Hernandez-Fuentes, a.k.a. Ivan Fuentes, ak.a. 'Tasma_ma, aXk.a. Ronal
| . Ivan Fuentes Hernandez, the defendant, shall forfeit to the United States of Ainet_tiéja_ v
'any--fi'rearm involved in thccommission of the Voffénse', includin'g,. but not limited to, the
‘followmg | |

a. a Ylmeng, model YL12-IJZB 12 gauge pump shotgun, beanng sertaI numbcr
9522812; and '

b. any ammumﬁ__on recovered with this firearm.
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